
C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\WT41PR1X\3-28-16 Meeting Minutes.docx1 

 

Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee Minutes 

Monday, March 28th, 2016 
   

1. Call to Order: The Parks, Tourism and Economic Development Committee meeting was called to 
order at 6:13pm in the County Board room of the Government Center in Whitehall, WI by Kevin 
Lien (Interim Park Manager). 

2. Certification of Open Meeting Law Requirements: Kevin Lien stated that the Open Meeting 
Law Requirements have been met.  

3. Roll Call: Members present: Michelle Haines, Jean Galasinski, Jeanne Nutter, Chuck Walek, Curt 
Skoyen. Jon Schultz arrived at 6:30pm. Also present were DLM Staff Jake Budish, Becky 
Arneson, Kirstie Heidenreich and citizens Bob Pietrek, Linda Mossman, and Karen Geske.  

4. Election of Committee Chairman, Vice Chairman and Secretary: Jeanne Nutter nominated Jon 
Schultz for Committee Chairman; seconded by Michelle Haines. Committee unanimously voted to 
elect Jon Schultz as chair. Michelle Haines nominated Jeanne Nutter for Vice Chairman; seconded 
by Chuck Walek. Committee unanimously voted to elect Jeanne Nutter as Vice Chairman. 
Michelle Haines nominated Jean Galasinski for secretary; seconded by Jeanne Nutter. Committee 
unanimously voted to elect Jean Galasinski as secretary. 

5. Adoption of Agenda: Motion to approve agenda by Michelle Haines; seconded by Chuck Walek.  
6. Welcome to New Committee: Kevin Lien stated he had been approached by a few Board 

Members a few months ago saying they wanted to make changes to the pre-existing Parks 
Committee and felt that the DLM would be a good interim fit for this Committee. Kevin stated 
Dick Miller asked him to make decisions until a new Committee was put in place. He had the 
DLM staff present introduce themselves (Jake Budish, Becky Arneson, Kirstie Heidenreich) and 
stated that his entire staff has been heavily involved in helping with the parks during this transition 
period. Jake, Keith, and Ann have worked hard on the surveying and maps for the campsites so 
that the new pre-registration process is easier and Becky has been taking in a large volume of calls 
for reservations, especially for the Ashley for the Arts weekend. Jean Galasinski stated she 
personally greatly appreciates all that the staff has done.  

7. Overview of Parks and Budgets: Kevin Lien gave the Committee an update on hiring a 29-
hour/week Park Manager at $15/hour and the new staff will be a county employee. The job 
description has been posted and applications are due by April 5th. The new Park Manager will 
report to Kevin and turn in timesheets, etc. to him. Kevin and Bob Pietrek discussed a 2 or 3-year 
lawn mowing contract that has been said to be in existence, but no one (including the mowing 
operator) can find the paper copy. Jeanne Nutter said it was a one-page document of loose-leaf 
paper that can likely be found in boxes of old files. DLM staff will continue to look for this and 
Jeanne said she will come in to help look for it. Jeanne asked if the new Park Manager will be 
living in the camper at the park and Kevin stated that is an option open to that person but it will not 
be required to stay on site at the campground. Becky Arneson, the DLM’s fiscal manager, prepared 
a handout and presented it to the Committee stating that there is $59,418 in the budget and to date, 
$571.16 has been spent this year. Most of that was for per-diems and $281 was taken out to repair 
the pot-holes in the driveway. Another $100 was spent on trees purchased through DLM’s tree and 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\WT41PR1X\3-28-16 Meeting Minutes.docx2 

 

shrub sale. Bob Pietrek stated that there is usually about 100 trees donated to the park annually as 
well and he recommends having black dirt available at the park when planting. Jeanne mentioned 
that student groups typically plant flowers around the park in the spring as well. She also stated to 
staff to stay in communication with the Highway Dept. regarding billing because there have been 
concerns over getting bills very late and the Committee would not like to see anymore delay in 
billing. Kevin stated that the Hwy Dept. has been wonderful to work with thus far during this 
transition. Becky continued to give an overview on the budget and reminded the Committee that 
they received an extension to 12/31/16 to spend the $73,980 of CapX2020 money. The 
snowmobile club also has a CapX2020 grant of $43,500. Jeanne said the $20,000 under the budget 
line item of “Trempealeau County Tourism Council” was set aside for maps/brochures to be put at 
the overlooks and scenic highways. The Committee discussed Becky’s statement that past meeting 
minutes stated that the $73,980 of CapX2020 money had to be used specifically for shelter 
improvements. Jeanne stated that there is a letter on file that states it can be used for the shelter or 
“park improvements.” 

8. Report of Initial Condition/Inventory of Pietrek Park: Jake Budish provided a list to the 
Committee of immediate action items that need to be taken at the park. He said that all appliances 
and refrigerators have to be removed, per Sam Flatland in the Health Department, as they all need 
to be commercial grade to be up to code (DHS 178). Semingson Plumbing will be coming out in 
early April to de-winterize the water pipes. Jake stated that $2,000 has been set aside in the 
previous budget under .314 under “Small items of equipment” for a water softener. Chuck Walek 
made a motion to move forward and purchase a water softener with a maximum price of $2,000. 
Jean Galasinski seconded it and the motion unanimously passed. Jon Schultz asked Kevin Lien if 
county maintenance staff would install the water softener and Kevin stated that Jeremy expressed 
his willingness to help out at the park and would likely be able to take care of the installation 
without any additional cost to the park budget. Bob Pietrek brought up a recent concern regarding 
shelter deposits and reservations. He said it’s becoming more and more common for people to 
make shelter reservations and then a few days prior to the reservation, they will cancel and get 
reimbursement in full and then still show up and use the facilities for free. Jon and Jeanne stated 
that there needs to be a change made to this and we need to set up a cancellation and date change 
fee. Becky shared several examples from Clark County campgrounds that she suggested we model 
our procedure after. She said it is strict but then we’re not going to have people calling all the time 
and changing dates on a whim and then cancelling right beforehand and getting their money back 
in full, causing the park to lose out on large profits. Jon Schultz later stated that the next meeting 
should be at the park in order to review some of the immediate action items on the list. Jeanne 
Nutter reminded staff that the lower shelter needs to be brought up to code for handicap access; 
Jake told her that Larry Gilles, building inspector in the DLM, has been working with him on that. 
Jake then went over the Trempealeau County Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance - Chapter 4: 
Particular Use Requirements 4.07(1): Campgrounds & Trailer Camps. He stated that he is 
concerned that we are not meeting several of these requirements at the campground. Kevin Lien 
mentioned these are all great required elements but they are also very expensive and cannot be 
accomplished overnight; they will need to be worked towards slowly. He also said the park was 
likely grandfathered in before some of these ordinances were in existence but it would be great to 
become compliant with all of these requirements eventually. Farm Progress Days Park was also 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\WT41PR1X\3-28-16 Meeting Minutes.docx3 

 

briefly discussed and Jeanne stated one concern was that there was a fish kill in the spring/pond in 
the park and the City of Whitehall never re-stocked it as requested. Jon Schultz asked Kevin Lien 
to look in to this and also to look in to getting the official boundaries of the park/healthcare center 
property surrounding the park. Kevin will talk to Kurt at the healthcare center and see if an MOU 
can be drafted regarding the healthcare center taking care of upkeep of the park.   

9. Updates from DLM Staff and the Health Department of Work Accomplished at Pietrek 
Park: Jake Budish showed the Committee the map that has been created of the original campsites 
and the expansion sites. After surveying each site following the vegetative markers, each campsite 
has been delineated and numbered now which will help with pre-registration of camping. Ashley 
for the Arts is August 11-14 and Jason Lockington has expressed some interest/concern for 
camping since this will be the first year that reservations are required. Bob Pietrek said there has 
been discussion in the past of leasing Tom and Dave Schank’s field next to the park for the Ashley 
for the Arts weekend but Corp Counsel Rian Radtke had concerns over the county’s liability…this 
can perhaps be looked in to further in the future.  

10. Recommendations from DLM Staff of Needed Projects: Jake Budish asked what the status of 
the upper shelter building plans were and Bob Pietrek said early 2016 was the goal to begin 
gathering official builds for renovations. Bob said they wanted to save the initial front part of the 
building but add on an addition through the back and add in a fireplace. Kevin stated a decision 
needs to be made in the very near future of how we are going to move forward with building plans. 

11. Discussion of Priorities as listed in the Trempealeau County Outdoor Recreation Plan: 
Kirstie Heidenreich provided a copy of the Trempealeau County Outdoor Recreation Plan to the 
Committee and asked them to take it home for review, drawing special attention to the last page 
where the previous Committee ranked the outdoor rec priorities for county from high to low. 
Jeanne Nutter said a swinging bridge across the Trempealeau River should be at the lowest priority 
because she previously received an estimated quote of hundreds of thousands of dollars, which will 
likely never become a reality in the budget. Bob Pietrek mentioned that the priority of “building a 
storm shelter” has been completed through the building of the new cement buildings, which can 
now be used as a storm shelter. Jon Schultz said this plan needs more attention than what can be 
given right now and asked for it to be put on a future agenda for discussion.   

12. Committee Discussion of Possible Grant Applications: Kirstie Heidenreich presented a handout 
to the Committee of a summary of past grant applications, gathered through an analysis of the 
papers that were received from the County Clerk’s office. She asked if the Committee would like 
DLM staff to pursue getting grants this year, given that grant applications are due in a month. Jean 
Galasinski said that it’s not worth doing if it’s not given the proper amount of time it’s worth of 
and that we have plenty to do this year, perhaps we could pursue this next year. Kirstie said that 
this year we can think about how we can tie shelter and park improvements to things like youth 
education, interpretive trails, etc. as those items typically look better to grant reviewers.  

13. Present Job Description and Status of Hiring of Park Staff: Kevin Lien reviewed a handout of 
the job description that has been posted and stated there has been one applicant but he is hoping 
many more will come in prior to April 5th. Bob Pietrek stated that past park staff has not wanted to 
work on holidays and weekends; Kevin said that could no longer be the case as that is when they 
will be most needed and that person is welcome to stay at the camper on site. Becky Arneson said 
that $22,000 has been put in the budget for the staff person and a landline phone in the camper and 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\WT41PR1X\3-28-16 Meeting Minutes.docx4 

 

cell phone from DLM will be available to them. Jean Galasinski asked if we could utilize any 
county citizens that are in need of fulfilling committee service hours through the justice system and 
Jake Budish stated that he has already been contacted to set this up and it is in the works to have 
them involved in the park clean-up as well. Kevin Lien asked if any Committee members would 
like to sit in on the interviewing process of the Park Manager. Jean Galasinski offered to 
participate and no one on the Committee had an objections to that. 

14. Acceptance and Receipt of Park Fees: Kevin Lien said that Becky Arneson has been in charge of 
receiving all reservations and payment since the transition. Becky gave the Committee a handout 
of two possible options to set up online payment through our website for park reservations. Both 
options had different levels of fees involved for each online transaction. Jon Schultz made a 
motion to approve a fee level restructuring of $15 for primitive camp sites, $20 for electric only 
and $25 for electric and water sites. Motion seconded by Chuck Walek and motion was 
unanimously approved by the Committee. Becky asked the Committee to consider lowering the 
cost of the shelters once the appliances are removed, as the reservation holders are expecting to 
have these in place. Jon Schultz asked staff to look in to pricing commercial-grade appliances to 
install in the shelters. Kevin Lien said we could try to have prices on these for the next meeting. 
Bob Pietrek suggested looking in to purchasing slightly used commercial-grade appliances from 
the healthcare center, as they may be getting rid of theirs and purchasing new ones for the new 
building. Kevin said that in the budget, items .240 for repair/maintenance and .350 
repair/maintenance-supplies, there may be some room in there for new appliances. Kevin also said 
in April, he is bringing resolutions before the Environment and Land Use Committee regarding 
excess money the DLM has brought in that will be sent to the general fund. The Parks Committee 
could potentially ask for some of this money for new appliances to bring the shelter up to code. 
After discussion, Michelle Haines made a motion for refunding $75 to existing shelter reservation 
holders and instilling a temporary fee of $75 for shelter reservations, with all future shelter 
reservations thereafter costing $150. Jean Galasinski seconded and the motion unanimously 
passed. Jon Schultz then made a motion to amend the previous motion, putting a time frame of two 
months (until May 28th) on the shelter pricing structure. Jean Galasinski seconded and the motion 
unanimously passed.  

15. Set next meeting date: Next meeting will be Monday, April 11, 2016 at 9:00am at Pietrek Park. 
Linda Mossman asked to make a comment to the Committee that she would like an agenda item 
for each meeting giving a public opportunity for comment. She also asked if there could be an 
email distribution list of agendas prior to the meeting. Jon Schultz stated that neither of these 
should be a problem. Kevin Lien stated that he neglected to bring back up the fee structure for 
cancellations and that the Committee needs to take action on a policy to put in place. Jon Schultz 
made a motion stating that if reservations are cancelled more than two weeks prior to their 
reservation date, it is a 50% cancellation fee (with the exception for emergency situations-staff 
discretion will be used) and after two weeks prior, there is no return of their reservation fee. The 
motion unanimously passed by the Committee. Kevin said that at the next meeting, staff will 
present a detailed fee restructure schedule, including a potential fee for a date change. He also said 
that Dick Miller is working on gathering two more citizen members for the Committee.  

16. Adjourn: Motion to adjourn at 9:02pm by Jon Schultz, seconded by Jean Galasinski.  
 



C:\Users\SUPERVISOR\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\WT41PR1X\3-28-16 Meeting Minutes.docx5 

 

Submitted by: Kirstie Heidenreich, recording secretary 

 


